Planning Policy Manager

West Oxfordshire District Council

Elmfield

New Yatt Road

Witney

Oxon OX28 IPB

10 October 2006

Dear Sir / Madam

Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document Consultation

Thank you for consulting the Home Builders Federation (HBF) on the above document. HBF has a number of comments to make in response to the SPD. These are set out below in the order in which they arise in the document. I hope you find these comments helpful and I look forward to being kept informed of future stages in the preparation of the LDF. I would also welcome receipt of a copy of the council’s response to these comments in due course.

Yours sincerely
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Bartholomew Wren
Regional Planner (Southern Region)

Size and Mix of affordable Homes

Paragraph 3.5. 

“The size and mix of affordable homes in terms of the number of bedrooms and flats/family houses should reflect the local need. The most up-to-date information on local need can be found in the latest Housing Needs Survey and in the Council’s Housing Register. However, Annex 2, which will be updated annually, gives a guide to the need by number of bedrooms for the district as a whole. Generally, two bedroom affordable houses should be provided on developments of up to 15 dwellings. Annex 2 also sets out the preferred size of units in terms of floorspace. Affordable homes should be at least as large as market homes on the site with the same number of bedrooms”.

HBF Response

The HBF object to the prescription of housing mix by tenure and floor space restrictions. We consider that this is an inflexible policy response, which does not allow the house building industry the opportunity of responding to changes in market demand as they arise. As planning circular 6/98, paragraph 4 states; “Planning policy should no be expressed in favour of any particular form of tenure”. The HBF also object to any restriction of dwelling mix and floor space standards, and the rigid enforcement of any requirements as stipulated in Annex 2 as this would be contrary to PPS12 paragraph 2.44, which states;

“Supplementary planning documents may contain policies which expands or supplements the policies in development plan documents. However, policies which should be included in a development plan document and subjected to proper independent scrutiny in accordance with the statutory procedures should not be set out in supplementary planning documents”. 

In the circumstances these requirements and the wording in the SPD can only be indicative, and in no way amount to a strong material consideration in determining planning applications. The dwelling mix and size should be negotiable on a site-by-site basis. 

Developments of 15 or more dwellings

Paragraph 3.19. 

“The Council wishes to ensure that any Registered Social Landlord is acceptable in terms of the Partnership and performance criteria adopted in accordance with the Council’s Housing Strategy. Developers are therefore encouraged to work with one or more of the Council’s Preferred Partner RSLs which have demonstrated that they can meet all of the Council’s requirements including the ability to secure both public and private finance. Any other affordable housing provider including any developer must be able to demonstrate that it can meet the specified criteria”. 
HBF Response

The HBF consider in accordance with Circular 6/98 that “Local planning authorities should not prescribe which partners developers should use to deliver the affordable housing, but rather should aim to ensure that arrangements will deliver the objectives of the policy as set out in the local plan” (Circular 6/98, paragraph 17).  In the circumstance the HBF suggest that the highlighted text in the above paragraph should be deleted. As it does potentially inhibit developers from working with their existing RSL partners, and inhibits the acquisition of new partnerships between developers and RSLs. May we draw your attention to our previous representation on this matter. 

Off-Site Provision/Financial contributions

Paragraph 3.21. 

“Normally the District Council will expect to secure affordable housing provision on site where open market housing is proposed because of the difficulty of finding other sites to make the provision, because of the delay generally associated with off-site provision and in the interests of securing balanced communities. However, in limited circumstances the District Council may accept that provision would be better on another site. In such cases, the Council will expect the developer to provide the affordable housing on a different site prior to commencement of development on the application site or to make a financial contribution to the Council for provision elsewhere. Circumstances where a financial contribution may be appropriate would be building conversions, specialist developments, or where the development is in a relatively isolated location”. 

HBF Response

The HBF would like the highlighted text in the above paragraph to be deleted, as we consider this requirement is unworkable in practice.

Paragraph 3.25. 

“Where the provision of a commuted sum has been agreed, this sum should be paid in total prior to commencement of development”.

HBF Response

This HBF would like this paragraph deleted, as this point should be for negotiation between developer and the council. Delivery of the funding for the affordable portion of a development prior to the commencement and even completion of a scheme does not afford developers the opportunity to cross subsidize the affordable component.  

Viability 

Paragraph 3.27. 

“The Council has no intention of making new development unviable but there will be a presumption that it will include full and appropriate provision for affordable housing unless it is demonstrated that it cannot do so. The onus is therefore on a developer to demonstrate that viability would be jeopardised. This will require a full economic appraisal of the costs of development and of returns from the sale of housing to show what sum (if any) could be made available for affordable housing. The appraisal should be presented on a residual land value basis taking into account all the costs of development including contributions to local infrastructure and services, the provision of affordable housing and the profit margin required by the developer. It should also include a valuation of the site in its existing use, not its purchase price or hope value. It should accompany the planning application or preferably form part of pre-application negotiations”.

HBF Response

It is the view of the HBF that authorities can seek to negotiate with developers but that they cannot expect or require an economic appraisal where the developer seeks to prove that a development is unviable given the planning obligations made upon the scheme. Furthermore, different developers and development schemes will operate to different costs and profits and it will be difficult for a third party to comment on what is, and what is not, financially appropriate.  

Annex 2 

Type and size of units

“All affordable housing should meet Lifetime Home Standards”

HBF Response

The HBF strongly oppose the inclusion of the above requirement in an SPD document. The inclusion of the above requirement amounts to an addition to policy H11, and this contravenes the guidance given in PPS12 as mentioned previously. In the circumstances the requirement for lifetime homes standards should be removed from Annex 2 of the SPD. In respect of the principle to require any aspect of planning policy to stipulate this requirement, the HBF wish to make several comments here that we suggest the council keeps in mind both with regard to this SPD and any future housing policies. 

Firstly the application of Lifetime Homes in this arbitrary way does not necessarily mean that, those Lifetime homes developed as an outcome of the policy will be occupied by individuals who have specific mobility needs or indeed those who may come to have mobility needs. In any case this is dependent upon the careful allocation of low cost affordable dwellings to those with specific needs. The inclusion of such a planning policy amounts only to a token gesture towards improving the functionality of new build dwellings across the board, which is a more appropriate approach.

The HBF strongly consider that the application of Lifetime Homes standards or equivalence should come progressively through the upgrading of building regulations, in consultation with the house building industry. At present Lifetime Home standards are not required by the Housing Corporation. In addition the additional cost of meeting Lifetime Homes specification does not result in improved profitability. In the case of affordable provision, it would amount to a further unrecoverable cost to developers, unless subsidy could be made available for this requirement. If however part or all of the elements of the Lifetime Homes are included within part M of the building regulations, not only would developers have certainty of the requirements through a more consistent policy approach, which overcomes local variation between planning policy requirements. They would also be able to create economies of scale through employing the changes in building practice and specification across the board, potentially making the implementation of Lifetime Homes or equivalent more economically viable and attainable to a larger proportion of the home buying/renting markets.  

Building control is also better placed to evaluate the implementation of Lifetime Homes or building regulations equivalence. There is no point in having a building control officer evaluating buildings to part M requirements, if the planning system is requiring a separate assessment of new residential buildings to standards which, supersede building regulations. Not only is this an extra pressure upon the planning system, and additional cost to the developer in assessment, but is also a policy approach that lacks common sense.  

With the majority of people currently living in housing which will never comply with the requirement of Lifetime Homes, the HBF consider that a more sensible way forwards is to develop a system of government grants to assist people in adapting their dwellings if they need to as well as looking at making future revisions to building regulations. 
